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P;L-R-G- Associailes

Chartered Acecountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Manjushree Finance Ltd., which
comprise slalement of financial position as at Ashad 32, 2079 {July 16, 2022), statement of
profit or loss, stalement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
staternent of cash flows for the wvear then ended and a summary of significant accounting
palicies and notes to the financial statements.

In ow opinion, accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the company as at Ashad 32, 2079, its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (N FRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal standards on Auditing {NSAs), Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the audit of the financial siatements section of our report. We are independent of the
company in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
ICAN,s Handbock of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Keyv audit malters are matters based on our judgment, are of most significance in the audit of
the financial staternents of the current period, which were addressed in the context of the audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, We do not provide
separate opinion on these matters.

The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below!, prevides 'the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial

statements.

Following are the Key audit matters:

"B.Ne. | . Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our aundit
1 | Interest Recognition
B ! The interest income of the | Qur audit approach regarding verification of the

institution is rtecognized on an | process of interest recognition included:
accrual basis and follows the a Obtaining a clear understanding of the
Interest Income Recognition | process of accrual of interest income on loans
Guidelines 2019 issued by NRB.  and advances in the Core Banking Software of |
Recognition of interest income on | the institution.
bad loans involves the judgments | b. For fair value of collateral, we relied on the |
on calculating the net realizable | latest available valuation report of the collateral
value of loans and advances. As | and have test-checked it as per NRB Income
an automated system is yvet to be | Recognition guidelines 2019,

used to suspend recognition of | e. Test checked the interest income recording
income on the basis of the |with manual computation on  sampled
overdue status of loan and fair | borrowers.

value of collatera] as well as a | d. Test-checked the premium charged on

. fa%' ’,.n;ﬂ Page 1 of 5
Hmandu
Kol X

. L.I.G. Associntes
Chartered Accountants
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review of fair wvaluation of |sampled borrowers from the report provided
collateral on a regular basis, | and basis taken by the management to arrive at
manual intervention is required in | the excess interest payable.

the interest recognition process
and hence create a rTisk of
improper application of the
pguidelines and determination of
the Fair Value of the collateral.
Thus, considered them as key
audit matters.

Impairment of Loans and
Advances

As per NRB Directive 4, the
institution shall measure
impairment less on loans and
advances at the higher of:

« Amount derived as per norms
prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank
for loan less provisioning; and

*« Amount determined adopting
Incurred Loss Model as per the
Carve out provided on NFRS 9
financial instruments -
impairment.

Impairment of loans and advances
under  incurred loss model
requires assessment of future
cash flows as well as historical
loss experiences of portfolios. On
the other hand, impairment of
loans and advances under NRB
norms for loan, loss provisioning
require assessment of the overdue
status of loans and advances and
proper utilization of loans for the
intended purpose.  Significant
estimates and assumptions used

‘by the management in such

calculations. Hence, the
assessment of the availability and
accuracy of required data for
impairment of loans and advances
under incurred loss model as well
as NRB provisioning requirement
is considered as Lkey audit
matters.

Our audit approach regarding verification
of impairment of loans and advances
included:

a. Test the operating effectiveness of key
controls established by the institution to
identify loss events and for determining the
extent of provisioning required against non-
performing loans and advances.

. Review the overdue status of loans and
advances by obtaining data from the
system and matching the same with the
NRB 2.2 report.

c. Review of sampled credit files, among
other things, from the perspective of
utilization of lean and advances for the
intended purpose by way of scrutiny of
financial statements, account movement,
account turnover etc. inciuding the
business visits of the selected borrowers.

d. Review of credit files of sampled
borrowers for expected future cash flows
with an indication of impairment are
assessed on the basis of realizable value of
collateral securities based on management
estimate,

e. Assess the grouping of homogeneous
group of loans on the basis of the nature
and purpese of loans including data of
historical loss experience in portfolios
based on past due data from the system as
well as data of loan loss provisioning of the
defined group in the past.

Information Technology (IT)
System and Controls over

Our audit approach regarding the information
technology of the institution is based upon the

financial reporting Information Technology Guidelines issued by
NRB and it included:
IT controls with respect +to

recording transactions, generating | a. Understanding of the business processes, IT

Mﬂ”] Page 2 of 5
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various reports in compliance |
with NRB guidelines and other
comphances to regulators is an
important part of the process,
Such repolting  is  heavily
dependent on the effective
working of Core Banking Software
[CBS] and other allied systems.
We have considered this a key
audit matter as any control
lapses, validation failures,
incorrect input data, and errors in
the extraction of data may result

Systems used to generate and suppert those |
balances and associated IT application controls
and IT dependencies in manual controls.

b. Understanding the coding system adopted by
the institution for varibus categories of
customers

c. Evaluating and testing the design and
operating  effectiveness of certain  control
activities over the integrity of the material IT
systems that the relevant to the financial
reporting.

< in incorrect financial reporting,
d. Understanding the feeding of the data in the
system and going through the extraction of the
financial information and statements from the
IT system existing in the institution,

e. Checking the user jauthority matrix for any
changes in the regulations/ policy of the
institution

f. Reviewed the reports generated by the system
onn a sample basis and verified the inferest
income and expense booking regarding loan and
deposit on a test basis with the CBS of the
bank.

g. Reliance on the independent Information
System Audit of the institution. _‘

] ]
Responsibilities of the Management and Those charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting standards (NFRSs) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary (o enable the preparation of financial
statemerfis that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable matters related to going concern

- and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the company or to cease operations or has no realistic allernative but to do so, those charged
with zovernance are responsible for overseeing the Company's linancial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

Page 3 of 5
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influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As
part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the [Mnancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive Lo those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal contral.

- s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but net for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

& ¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease (o
continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
On the basis of our examination, we would like (o further report that;
L. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which te the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of audit.

II. The accounts and records of the Company have been maintained as required by
law! !
. Financial statements are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the
Company.
. IV. . The capital fund, risk bearing fund and the provision for possible impairment of
assets of the Company are adequate as per the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra
Bank.
: W, In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us, the Board of Directors, the representative or any empleyee of the
Company has not acted contrary to the provision of law relating to accounts nor
caused direct loss or damage to the Company deliberately or acted in a manner that
would jeopardize the interest and security of the Company.

VI The operations of the Company are within its jurisdiction.

VIL The Company has nol acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of
the depositars and investors.

)
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VIII. The Company has a centralized core accounting system and details received from
branches of the Company though the statements are independently not audited,
were adequate for our audit, and

IX. We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounis, so far as it appeared
from our examination of the books of account.

Auditor

CA. Santosh Lamsal

Partner

P.L.R.G. Associates
Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 221218CAQ045RIURCa

Date : 20079.09.01
Place: Kathmandu
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As on 32nd Ashad 2079 NPR
Particulars | Notes | 32Ashad2079 | 31 Ashad 2078
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 2,743,682,933 198,602,534
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 317,679,428 327,399,435
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 43 - -
Derivative financial instruments 44
Other trading assets 4.5 - -
Loan and Advances to B/Fls 4.6 981,079,112 1,752,346,137
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 9,712,404,786 6,229,419,416
Investment in securities 4.8 1,863,898,940 4,716,337,836
Current Tax Assets 4.9 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10
Investment in Associates 4.1 - -
Investment property 412 25,905,880 28,173,061
Property and equipment 413 192,362,025 34,682,241
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14 1,426,257 1,331,374
Deferred tax assets 415 16,770,655 11,367,438
Other assets 4.16 72,559,243 411,773,625
Total Assets 15,927,769,260 13,711,433,096
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 1,872,544,345 2,145,425,549
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 1,100,987,606 239,958,857
Derivative Financial instruments 419 - -
Deposit from customers 4.20 10,411,002,401 8,911,769,765
Borrowings 4.21 - -
Current Tax Liabilities 49 11,751,464 11,988,908
Provisions 4.22 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 415
Other liabilities 4.23 223,330,243 145,559,210
Debt securities issued 4.24 500,000,000 500,000,000
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Total liabilities 14,119,616,060 11,954,702,289
Equity
Share Capital 4.26 1,351,552,848 965,394,892
Share Premium - -
Retained Earning 1,519,368 451,748,556
Reserves 427 455,080,982 339,587,359
Total equity attributable to equity holders 1,808,153,198 1,756,730,807
Non-controlling interests - -
Total equity 1,808,153,198 1,756,730,807
Total liabilities and equity 15,927,769,260 13,711,433,096
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 300,000 300,000
Net assets value per share 133.78 181.97
As per our report of even date
Bikash Raj Shakya Narayan Subedi Indira Pandit Ghimire  Yadav Adhikari Ramhari Sharma CA. Santosh Lamsal
Chief Operation Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Director Partner
P.L.R.G Associates

Suman Prasad Adhikari Chinta Mani Gautam Dilman Singh Chand Arun Neupane Chartered Accountants

Director Director

Date: 2079/09/01
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Manjushree Finance Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 32 Ashad 2079

Notes 2078-79 2077-78
NPR NPR

Interest Income 4.29 1,466,212,332 949,567,276
Interest Expense 4.30 (1,013,483,682) (668,460,131)
Net interest income 452,728,649 281,107,145
Fees and Commission Income 4.31 75,151,708 45,586,870
Fees and Commission Expense 4.32 - -
Net fee and Commission income 75,151,708 45,586,870
Net interest fee and commission income 527,880,357 326,694,015
Net Trading Income 433 - -
Other Operating Income 4.34 8,276,539 632,188,486
Total operating income 536,156,896 958,882,501
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.35 75,668,008 (5,989,022)
Net Operating income 460,488,887 964,871,523
Operating expenses
Personnel Expense 4.36 184,202,929 173,852,211
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 82,887,490 66,221,672
Depreciation and amortisation 4.38 35,982,164 18,480,226
Operating Profit 157,416,304 706,317,413
Non operating income 4.39 -
Non operating expense 4.40 - -
Profit before income tax 157,416,304 706,317,413
Income tax expense 4.41 48,070,217 210,894,232
Current tax 53,473,434 215,640,466
Deferred tax income (5,403,218) (4,746,235)
Profit for the period 109,346,087 497,231,619
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the bank 109,346,087 497,231,619
Non-controlling interest - -
Profit for the period 109,346,087 497,231,619
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share( Restated for FY 2077-78) 8.09 36.79
Diluted earnings per Share

As per our report of even date
Bikash Raj Shakya Narayan Subedi Indira Pandit Ghimire  Yadav Adhikari Ramhari Sharma CA. Santosh Lamsal

Chief Operation Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Director Partner
o ) . . P.L.R.G Associates

Suman Prasad Adhikari Chinta Mani Gautam Dilman Singh Chand Arun Neupane Chartered Accountants

Director Director

Date: 2079/09/01
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Manjushree Finance Limited
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 32 Ashad 2079
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Notes

2078-79

2077-78

NPR

NPR

Profit for the period

109,346,087

497,231,619

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

a) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

+ Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value

+ Gains/(losses) on revaluation

+ Acturial gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans

* Income tax relating to above items

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

+ Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

+ Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial assets of foreign operation)

* Income tax relating to above items

* Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

c¢) Share of other comprehensive income of associate accounted as per equity method

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of Income Tax

Total comprehensive income for the period

109,346,087

497,231,619

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank

109,346,087

497,231,619

Non-controlling interest

Total Comprehensive income for the period

109,346,087

497,231,619

Bikash Raj Shakya
Chief Operation

Indira Pandit Ghimire
Chairman

Yadav Adhikari
Director

Narayan Subedi
Chief Executive Officer

Suman Prasad Adhikari Chinta Mani Gautam
Director Director

Date: 2079/09/01
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Dilman Singh Chand
Director
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Ramhari Sharma

As per our report of even date

Director

Arun Neupane
Director

CA. Santosh Lamsal

Partner

P.L.R.G Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Manjushree Finance Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
As on 32 Asadh 2079

Commission and fee paid

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
NPR NPR

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest Received 1,473,802,807 986,609,142
Fee and other income received 75,151,708 45,586,870
Dividend Received - 3,672,139
Receipts from other operating activities - -
Interest paid (1,010,434,389 (647,449,921)

Cash payments to employee

)
(205,184,940)

(123,179,233)

Other expense paid

(83,120,428)

(76,077,574)

Operating cash flows before change in operating assets and liabilities 250,214,758 189,161,423
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets (2,468,142,250) (1,363,892,143)
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 9,720,007 94,125,440
Placement with bank and financial institutions - -
Other Trading assets - -
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 781,424,807 (770,107,237)
Loan and advances to customer (3,551,861,408) (368,076,643)
Other Assets 292,574,344 (319,833,702)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities 2,087,380,182 3,473,523,536
Due to bank and financial institutions (272,881,204) 181,085,015
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 861,028,749 229,051,563
Deposits from customers 1,499,232,637 3,063,386,958
Borrowings - -
Other Liabilities - -
Net Cash flow from operating activities before tax paid (130,547,311) 2,298,792,816
Income taxes paid (53,710,878) (241,770,036)
Net Cash flow from operating activities (184,258,188) 2,057,022,780

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of investment securities

(1,863,898,940)

(3,981,205,575)

Receipts from sale of investment securities 4,724,544,851 625,343,472
Purchase of plant and equipment (76,124,629) (9,381,029)
Receipt from sale of property and equipment 1,149,000 (54,453)
Purchase of intangible assets (678,000) (829,067)
Receipt from sale of intangible assets - -
(Purchase)/Sale of investment properties 2,270,000 8,172,672
Receipt from the sale of investment properties

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities 2,787,262,282 (3,357,953,980)
Cash flows from financing activities

Receipt from issue of debt securities - 500,000,000
Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities - -
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares - -
Dividend paid (57,923,694) (44,997,220)
Interest paid - -
Other receipt/payment - -
Net cash from financing activities (57,923,694) 455,002,780
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,545,080,400 (845,928,419)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Shrawan 01, 2077 198,602,534 1,044,530,953
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held - -
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,743,682,933 198,602,534

Bikash Raj Shakya
Chief Operation

Narayan Subedi
Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director

Suman Prasad Adhikari Chinta Mani Gautam Dilman Singh Chand
Director Director Director

Date: 2079/09/01
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Indira Pandit Ghimire  Yadav Adhikari

As per our report of even date

Rambhari Sharma

Director

Arun Neupane
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CA. Santosh Lamsal

Partner

P.L.R.G Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Manjushree Finance Limited
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
As on 32 Asadh 2079
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Particulars 32nd Ashad 2079 31st Ashad 2078
Opening Retained Earning 451,748,556 193,242,499
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 109,346,087 497,231,619

Appropriations:

a. General reserve

(21,869,217)

(99,446,324)

b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund

c. Capital redemption reserve

(83,333,333

d. Corporate social responsibility fund

(4,972,316

e. Employees' training fund

f. Dividend Distribution of Previous Year

)
(1,054,822)
)

(444,081,650

~ | [=]|

(192,260,847

g. Share Issue Expenses directly charged to equity

f. Transferred from Fair Value Reserve

75,522,412

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment

10,755,620

469,317,043

Regulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)

(5,261,359)

(11,349,832)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)

d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)

1,428,324

5,148,783

e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)

(5,403,218)

(11,367,438)

f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+)

h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)

i. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)

j- Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)

i. Other (+/-)

Distributable profit or (loss)

1,519,368

451,748,556

Bikash Raj Shakya Narayan Subedi Indira Pandit Ghimire
Chief Operation Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Suman Prasad Adhikari Chinta Mani Gautam Dilman Singh Chand
Director Director Director

Date: 2079/09/01
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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As per our report of even date

Yadav Adhikari Ramhari Sharma
Director Director

Arun Neupane
Director

CA. Santosh Lamsal
Partner
P.L.R.G Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Shareholders holding 0.5% and more

S.No Name No. of Shares Paid amount %age
1 SUMAN PRASAD ADHIKARI 947,779 94,777,908 7.01%
2 PARAS ADHIKARI 733,610 73,361,038 5.43%
3 KAMAL KUMAR BEGANI 439,869 43,986,920 3.25%
4 SHARAD KOIRALA 291,049 29,104,921 2.15%
5 DAMODAR PRASAD GAUTAM 257,441 25,744,128 1.90%
6 INDU DEVI SHARMA 178,038 17,803,800 1.32%
7 RISHIKESH GAUTAM 168,946 16,894,577 1.25%
8 LP BHANU SHARMA 158,607 15,860,669 1.17%
9 REKHA OLI UPRETI 155,374 15,537,385 1.15%
10 VINAY KUMAR SHARMA 148,112 14,811,246 1.10%
" SHOVA MISHRA 134,339 13,433,851 0.99%
12 SANTOSH KUMAR RATHI 134,338 13,433,833 0.99%
13 HATHWAY INVESTMENT NEPAL 134,338 13,433,833 0.99%
14 PREM NARYAN SAPKOTA 133,233 13,323,272 0.99%
15 SAURAV DAHAL 133,233 13,323,272 0.99%
16 SATYABHAMA NIRAULA 132,935 13,293,527 0.98%
17 SHANKAR PRASAD DAHAL 132,607 13,260,732 0.98%
18 SAGAR KUMAR GHIMIRE 132,468 13,246,796 0.98%
19 PRATIMA UPADHAYA DAHAL 131,752 13,175,185 0.97%
20 KALYAN RAJ BARAL 130,463 13,046,251 0.97%
21 NUMANATH POUDEL 129,034 12,903,351 0.95%
22 RABI RAJ ARYAL 123,087 12,308,690 0.91%
23 BISHNU SUBEDI 123,084 12,308,419 0.91%
24 CAPTIVE INVESTMENT COMPANY PVTLTD 120,280 12,027,986 0.89%
25 VIJAYA BAHADUR SHAH 116,530 11,653,042 0.86%
26 DIVYAKOIRALA 110,117 11,011,710 0.81%
27 SHOVITA SHRESTHA DHAKAL 102,003 10,200,316 0.75%
28 SHRICHAND JAIN 98,477 9,847,658 0.73%
29 RAJ KUMAR AGRAWAL 97,115 9,711,514 0.72%
30 BHOJ RAJ ARYAL 83,235 8,323,504 0.62%
31 NABARAJ THAPA 81,591 8,159,146 0.60%
32 KISHORE DHUNGANA 80,582 8,058,232 0.60%
33 BALARAM SAPKOTA 73,986 7,398,598 0.55%
34 TANKA PRASAD DHAKAL 69,036 6,903,579 0.51%
35 SHARADA SHARMA GAUTAM 67,580 6,757,962 0.50%
36 SANTOSH NIRAULA 67,580 6,757,955 0.50%
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Manjushree Finance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 32 Ashadh, 2079

1. General Information

Manjushree Finance Limited (referred to as “the financial institution" hereinafter) is a National level finance company
domiciled in Nepal, registered as a Public Limited Company under Companies Act 2063 & Banking and Financial
Institution Act, 2063. The registered address of the financial institution is located at New Baneshwor, Kathmandu,
Nepal. The financial institution is listed on Nepal Stock Exchange and is trading under the code “MFIL".

2. Basis of Preparation

21

2.2

23

24

25

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the financial institution for the year ended 16th July, 2022 comprising Statement
of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes
in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements (including Significant Accounting
Policies), have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (hereafter referred as
NFRS), laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements
of all applicable laws and regulations.

The financial institution has applied certain carve-outs which are as described in Notes to Accounts.

Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Financial Institution has the resources
to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Board of Directors have
considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections
of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

Reporting Period and Approval of financial statements

The financial institution follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar.

The accompanied financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on its meeting held
on 2079.09.01 and have been recommended for adoption by shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.
Functional and Presentation currency

Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency
of the financial institution.

Use of Estimates, assumption and judgments

The financial institution, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, the financial institution is required to make judgement in
respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could
materially affect the financial statements. Later on this may be determined that a different choice could have
been more appropriate.

NFRS requires the financial institution to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements.

The financial institution applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates is revised, and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant section of the notes wherever
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the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

Changes in Accounting policies

There has been no significant change in the accounting policies adopted by the bank except where required
due to adoption of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

New Reporting Standards in Issue But not yet Effective

There have been amendments to the Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
(ICAN) and applicability of the new Standards have been notified for IFRS. But the amendments and new
standards become applicable only when ICAN pronounces them.

The Financial Institution has availed the Carve-outs on NFRS-9 Financial Instruments dated 2nd Shrawan
2079. The quantitative and qualitative impact of the same have been disclosed as applicable.

New Standard And Interpretation Not Adopted

Financial statements of the Financial Institution have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) to the extent
applicable.

Discounting

The Financial Institution determines amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability using the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts throughout the expected life of a financial asset or a financial liability to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset or liability. If expected life cannot be determined reliably, then the contractual life is used.

In case where the financial institution assesses that the transaction amount of a financial asset or a financial
liability does not represent its fair value, the related future cash flows are discounted at prevailing interest rate
to determine the initial fair value.

Comparative Information

The Financial Statement of the Bank provides comparative information in respect of previous periods. The
accounting policies have been consistently applied by Bank with those of the previous financial year in
accordance with NAS 01. Presentation of Financial Statements, except those which had to be changed as
a result of application of the new NFRS or expiry of the carve out period. Further, comparative information is
reclassified wherever necessary to comply with the current presentation. The changes in comparative have
been duly disclosed in notes.

Materiality and Aggregation In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial
Statements), each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Iltems
of dissimilar nature or functions too are presented separately unless they are immaterial. Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not
offset in the Statement of Profi t or Loss unless required or permitted by an Accounting Standard.

Prior Period Errors

Prior period errors may be due to omission or misstatements in an entity's financial statements. Such
omissions may relate to one or more prior period. Correction of error done by calculation of cumulative effect
of the change on the financial statements for the period as if new method or estimate had always been used
for all the affected previous period financial statements. Details of prior period adjustment has been shown
in explanatory notes

Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements), each
material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. ltems of dissimilar nature
or functions too are presented separately unless they are immaterial. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
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are off set and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement
of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by an Accounting Standard.

2.13 Limitation of NFRS implementation

If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such exception
to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective section.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for available —for-sale
investments, assets held for sale and discontinued operations, other financial assets and liabilities held for
trading and financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), all of which
have been measured at fair value.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies and
judgements as required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed specifically.

3.2 Basis of Consolidation

The financial institution does not have control over any other entity for consolidation of Financial Statements.
Apart from that, at the end of Ashadh, 2079, the financial institution does not have any Investments in Shares.

3.3 Cash & Cash Equivalent

The fair value of cash is the carrying amount. Cash and cash equivalent represent the amount of cash in hand,
balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at short notice and highly liquid financial assets
with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in their value and used by the financial institution in the management of short-term commitment.

Details of the Cash and Cash Equivalents are given in Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.
3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

3.41 Recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers and balances
due to customers, are initially recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the financial institution
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades:
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place. Loans and advances to customers are
recognised when funds are transferred to the customers' account at fair value inclusive of transaction
costs. The financial institution recognises due to customer balances when funds reach the bank.

3.4.2 Classification
The financial institution classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
v Financial assets and liabilities held for trading

The financial institution classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading when
they have been purchased or issued primarily for short term profit making through trading
activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Included in this classification are
Government bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc. held
primarily for the trading purpose.

v" Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been
designated by management upon initial recognition. Management may only designate an
instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met, and
designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

» The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis

Or

» The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities, or both,
which are managed, and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management or investment strategy

Or

» The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is
clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that separation of the
embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

Loans and receivables to Customers

After initial measurement, loans and advances to customers are subsequently measured at
amortisation over the period of loan. This practice is almost nearer to the effective interest
method prescribed by NFRS. The method has been adopted as the cost for computation
for interest on effective interest method is huge in terms of benefits to be received from the
computation in the short run.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the financial institution's management has the intention and ability to
hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale assets are those non-derivative financial assets intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in
interest rates, exchange rates, commaodity prices or equity prices.

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost

Financial liabilities not classified held at fair value through profit or loss includes borrowings
which are classified as amortised cost instruments.

3.4.3 Measurement

v

3% AT e fatwes

Initial measurement

All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction cost except in the
case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value taken directly to
the statement of profit or loss. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in revenue
according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been established.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value taken to Other Comprehensive Income. The Bank makes
irrevocable election to route fair value changes through Other Comprehensive Income.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured
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at amortised cost. Within this category loans and advances to the customers have been
recognised at amortised cost using the method that very closely approximates effective interest
rate method. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognised in the
income statement within credit loss expense. If the financial institution were to sell or reclassify
more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments before maturity (other than
in certain specific circumstances), the entire category would be tainted and would have to be
reclassified as available-for-sale.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, with any difference between
proceeds net of directly attributable transaction costs and the redemption value recognised
in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired
or where the financial institution has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. If
substantially all the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor transferred and the financial
institution has retained control, the assets continue to be recognised to the extent of the financial
institution's continuing involvement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability.

For recognizing gain/loss in case of de-recognition, the financial institution has applied the policy
to recognize the fair value movement till preceding year to Other Comprehensive Income and to
recognize the gain realized in reporting year to Income Statement.

Impairment of Loans and Advances

The financial institution reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each Reporting
date to assess whether an impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or
loss. In particular, the Management's judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based
on assumptions about a number of factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in future
changes to the provisions made.The individual impairment provision applies to financial assets
evaluated individually for impairment and is based on Management's best estimate of the present
value of the future cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows,
Management makes judgments about a borrower's financial situation and the net realisable value of
any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy
and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable.

Individual assessment of impairment of exposures means establishing whether objective evidence
of impairment exists, estimation of the present value of future cash flows, and calculation of the
value of impairment for each individual receivable from the borrower included in this assessment.

The financial institution has considered all loans and advances for individual assessment of
impairment. The bank determines, for each individual loan to be assessed for individual impairment,
whether they expect to collect their receivables from expected future cash flows (going concern)
or from collateral realization (gone concern). If a financial institution identifies objective evidence
of impairment, the financial institution indicates, at single debtor level, the most realistic sources
of repayment (collection approach/strategy) based on all available information regarding such
borrower's financial position and performances. The financial institution assesses whether collection
will be made from the borrower's expected future operating cash flows (borrower continues to
perform business activities — going concern) or on the basis of collateral enforcement and realization
(expectation that the borrower ceases to exist — gone concern). In both cases, financial institution
uses conservative assumptions relating to the estimation of the expected cash flows, taking into
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account current economic conditions and the financial institution's own economic forecasts.

When estimating impairment based on collateral realization, the recoverable amount is the present
value of the net inflow from collateral realization (taking into account the priority of claims), discounted
by applying the original effective interest rate to the expected time to realization.

A collective impairment provision is established for:
[1 Groups of homogeneous loans and advances that are not considered individually significant; and
[1 Groups of assets that are individually significant but that were not found to be individually impaired

Since, the financial institution has considered all loans and advances for individual assessment of
impairment, collective impairment provision has not been considered.

As stated in 2.7 the financial institution loans and advances is greater considering the NRB directive
as compared to NFRS impairment provisioning. Therefore, provisioning as per NRB directive is
applied.

3.4.6 Impairment of Financial Investments — Available-for-Sale

The financial institution also records impairment charges on available-for-sale equity investments
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost along with
the historical share price movements, duration and extent up to which the fair value of an investment
is less than its cost.

3.4.7 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The financial institution assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for an asset or
a cash generating unit (CGU) at each Reporting date or more frequently, if events or changes in
circumstances necessitate to do so. This requires the estimation of the ‘Value in use' of such individual
assets or the CGUs. Estimating ‘Value in use' requires the Management to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the asset or the CGU and also to select a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of the relevant cash flows. This valuation requires the financial
institution to make estimates about expected future cash flows and discount rates and hence, they
are subject to uncertainty.

3.5 Trading Assets

Trading assets are those assets that the financial institution acquires principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit shall be presented under
this account head. The other trading asset includes non-derivative financial assets. It includes Government
bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc held primarily for the trading
purpose.

3.6 Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities
Financial institution doesn't deal with any derivative financial instruments.

3.7 Property and Equipment

All property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
financial institution and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated although it is subject to impairment testing. Depreciation on other assets is
calculated using the straight- line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:
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ROU Assets As per NFRS 16
Vehicle 7 Years
Furniture and Fixture 5 Years
Leasehold 5 Years

Computer and Office Equipment 5 Years
Machinery 5 Years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of
financial position date. The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to be in use is considered not
material.

At each reporting date, assets are also assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset's
carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately
to the recoverable amount.

Assets with costs less than NPR 5,000 are charged off on purchase as revenue expenditure.
Gains and losses on disposals are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.8 Intangible assets
Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the probability that
the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Bank and are amortised on the basis of
their expected useful lives.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalised where it is
probable that it will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are
amortised over the period of 5 years in Straight Line method (SLM). Costs associated with maintaining
software are recognised as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset's
carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately.

3.9 Investment Property

Land or Land and Building other than those classified as property and equipment and non-current assets held
for sale under relevant accounting standard are presented under this account head. The Non-Banking Assets
acquired by the financial institution is classified as investment property.

3.10 Income Tax

3.10.1 Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities of Nepal. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date
in Nepal. The liabilities recognised for the purpose of current Income tax, including fees, penalties
are included under this head.

3.10.2 Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the financial institution as at the reporting date
which is expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
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against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax relating to items which are charged or credited directly to equity, is credited or charged
directly to equity and is subsequently recognised in the statement of profit or loss together with the
deferred gain or loss.

3.11 Deposits, Debt securities issued and subordinate Liabilities
The deposits held by the financial institution on behalf of its customers are classified as financial liabilities
and measured at amortised cost under effective interest method. The financial institution has issued debt
securities amounting NPR 500,000,000 during FY 2077-78.

3.12 Provisions
Provisions are recognised in respect of present obligations arising from past events where it is probable that
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations and they can be reliably estimated.

3.13 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the financial
institution and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be
met before revenue is recognised.
3.13.1 Interest Income

Interest Income include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those
investment securities measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, due
from Nepal Rastra Bank, due from BFls, loan and advances to staff etc.

Interest income on loans and advances is recognized on amortised principal which is nearer to
the effective interest method suggested by NFRS. The adoption of effective interest method is not
possible due to constraints of time, effort and cost in short term compared to the benefits it provides.
Interest of loans and advances which are significantly impaired are not recognized.

Interest income on government bond, treasury bills and bank balances are recognized under
effective interest method.

Accrued Interest on Loan (except for bad loan) has been recognised.

3.13.2 Fees and commissions

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided or significant act performed. Service Fee Income/Expenses are recognized on accrual
basis unless it is impracticable to recognize as allowed through carve-out on NFRS.

3.13.3 Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when the financial institution's right to receive the payment is
established, which is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

3.13.4 Net Trading Income

Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value and the related interest
income or expense and dividends, for financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading.

3.13.5 Net income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Contractual interest income and expense on financial instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised within net interest income.

3.14 Interest Expense
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financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as

available-for-sale and financial instruments designated at FVTPL, interest expense is recorded using the EIR
unless it is impracticable.

3.15 Employee Benefits

3.156.1

3.15.2

3.156.3

3.16 Leases

Retirement Benefits

The financial institution has schemes of retirement benefits namely Gratuity, Provident Fund and
Medical Allowance.

Retirement benefit obligations
The financial institution operates a defined contribution plans as provident fund contribution.

For Provident Fund, the financial institution pays contributions to the publicly administered provident
fund plans (named Employee's Provident Fund) on a mandatory basis, and such amounts are
charged to operating expenses. The financial institution has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

The new Labour Act 2074 is applicable from Bhadra 19, 2074 which requires payment of minimum
Gratuity of at least 8.33% of basic salary to all staff (equal to one month salary per year). The
financial institution has not yet decided for the revision of its Employees Byelaws as per New Labour
Act. Further the bye laws also needs to be approved from the regulator. As the act is already in
force, the financial institution is in the process of adopting new laws. Since, the liability of gratuity is
significantly immaterial for current year, the financial institution has not carried out actuarial valuation.

Long Term Benefit Liability (Accumulated Leave)

Long Term Benefit Liability

The financial institution provides accumulated leave benefit under its staff byelaw. The Home Leave
is accumulated up to 90 days and Sick Leave is accumulated up to 45 days.

Accumulated leave benefits are treated as long term benefit liability. Accumulated leave obligations
are estimated on the basis of actuarial Valuation. Long term benefit liability are not subject to same
degree of uncertainty as defined benefit plan. Therefore re-measurement gain/(loss) on accumulated
leave is charged to Profit and Loss account.

The financial institution has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
Since, the liability of leave is significantly immaterial for current year, the financial institution has not
carried out actuarial valuation.

Staff Bonus

Provision for bonus has been made at 10% of net profit including such bonus as prescribed by the
directive of Nepal Rastra Bank.

At inception of a contract, an entity shall assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

a.

=t AT gidqaed 209

The finance as a Lessee:
e At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.
e At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost.

The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise: (a) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability; (b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received; (c) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (d) an estimate
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of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
The lessee incurs the obligation for those costs either at the commencement date or as a
consequence of having used the underlying asset during a particular period.

e Atthe commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee's incremental borrowing rate.

e Subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset

After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset applying a Cost Model.

b. Cost Model

To apply a cost model, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset at cost: (a) less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses; and (b) adjusted for any re-measurement of
the lease liability specified in paragraph 36(c). A lessee shall apply the depreciation requirements
in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment in depreciating the right-of-use asset, subject to the
requirements in paragraph 32.

C. Subsequent Measurement of Lease Liability

After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability by: (a) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (b) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (c) re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications specified in paragraphs 39—46, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term shall be the amount that
produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability. After the
commencement date, a lessee shall recognize in profit or loss, unless the costs are included in the
carrying amount of another asset applying other applicable Standards, both: (a) interest on the lease
liability; and (b) variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

3.17 Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the NPR using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except when recognised in other comprehensive income. Non-
monetary assets that are measured at fair value are translated using exchange rate at the date that fair value
was determined.

The financial institution is not involved in any kind of foreign currency transaction during this year.

3.18 Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitment

Inthe ordinary course of business, the financial institution issues performance guarantees, bid bond guarantees
and advance payment guarantee. These guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statement (within
‘contingent liabilities') at guaranteed value. The premium received is recognised in the income statement in
net fees and commission income on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.

3.19 Share Capital and Reserves

3.19.1 Share Capital

Financial instruments issues are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer
cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs
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directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from
the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognised in equity in the period in which they
are declared.

The issue expenses for the issue was charged in the year of issue and though the impact from past
of the financial institutions' equity the amount has not been adjusted with the share capital and the
financial institution considered the impact to be immaterial.

3.19.2 Reserves

The reserves include regulatory and free reserves.

v
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General Reserve

There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the net profit to the general reserve until
the reserve is twice the paid up share capital. The reserve is the accumulation of setting aside
profits over the years.

No Dividend (either cash dividend or bonus share) are distributed from the amount in General/
Statutory Reserve.

Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any Reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible
Assets, Investment Property) shall be presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves
often serve as a cushion against unexpected losses but may not be fully available to absorb
unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in market value and tax consequences
of revaluation. The financial institution has followed cost model therefore no assets revaluation
reserve is created.

Capital Reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital and
which shall not be available for distribution of cash dividend. The amount from share forfeiture
due to non-payment of remaining amount for the unpaid shares, capital grants received in
cash or kind, capital reserve arising out of merger and acquisition etc are presented under this
heading.

Special Reserve

Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive or special
instruction of NRB are represented as special reserve. The amount allocated to this reserve by
debiting retained earning account are presented under this heading.

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating 1% of Net profit
as per NRB Directive is presented under this account head.

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Itis a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in Bank's investments
as directed by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank. Bank & Financial Institutions are required to
create Investment Adjustment Reserve equal to 2% of Value of investment.

Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the financial institution to this
reserve as per the Directive of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which
shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) shall
be presented under this account head. The amount allocated to this reserve shall include
interest income recognized but not received in cash, difference of loan loss provision as per
NRB directive and impairment on loan and advance as per NFRS (in case lower impairment
is recognized under NFRS), amount equals to deferred tax assets, actual loss recognized in
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other comprehensive income, amount of goodwill recognized under NFRS etc. Details are as
presented under:
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2074/75
207576 | 28,264,603 -] osars| 22897812 4985315 - - i - | 56214103
2076/77 | 19,905,235 -4,955,315 14,949,920
2077178 11,349,832 -5,148,783 | 11,367,438 17,568,486
2078179 | 5,261,359 1428324 | 5403218 9,236,252
Total | 64,877,402 96373 16,320,705 | 16,770,655 97,968,762

v" Other reserve

Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) are presented
under thus by disclosing accounting heads.

3.20 Earnings per share

The financial institution measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity
shareholders for the period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for
the relevant period as required by NAS 33 - Earnings Per Share.

There are no instruments, such as convertibles, that would require dilution of EPS, therefore diluted EPS has
not been computed and disclosed.

3.21 Segmental Reporting

The financial institution's segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 geographical segments.
Geographical segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
financial institution's management, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the geographical segments. All transactions between geographical segments are conducted on an arm's
length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated in Head Office. Income and expenses
directly associated with each segment are included in determining geographical segment performance.

Segmental information has been provided under Disclosures & Additional Information.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of
the financial institution's total revenue in any of the periods reported.

3.22 Interim Financial Reporting

Interim reports corresponding to the financial statements had been reported in accordance with the regulatory
reporting requirements. Those statements have been published quarterly in national level newspaper.

3.23 Debenture Issue Expenses
The finance company has issued 9.5% debenture amounting to Rs. 500,000,000.00. for FY 2077-78.

3.24 Deferred Tax Liability of previous Year

3.25 Proposed Dividend
The financial institution has decided not to distribute any dividend for the financial year 2078/79.
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Schedules to Financial Statement

4.1 Cash and cash equivalent
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NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Cash in Hand

252,741,803

118,018,292

Balances with B/Fis

2,490,941,130

80,584,242

Money at call and short notice

Other

Total

2,743,682,933

198,602,534

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Statutory balances with NRB

317,679,428

Securities purchased under resale agreement

327,399,435

Other deposit and receivable from NRB

Total

317,679,428

327,399,435

4.3 Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Placement with domestic B/Fls

Placement with Foreign B/Fls

Less: Allowances for impairement

Total

4.4 Derivative Financial Instruments

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Held for trading

Interest rate swap

Forward exchange contract

Others

Held for risk management

Interest rate swap

Forward exchange contract

Others

Total

4.5 Other Trading assets

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Treasury Bills

Government bond

NRB bonds

Domestic Corporate bonds

Equities

Other

Total

Pledged

Non- Pledged
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4.6 Loans and advances to B/Fls

NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Loan to Microfinance Institutions 993,996,330 1,775,421 137
Other - -
Less: Allowances for Impairment (12,917,218) (23,075,000)
Total 981,079,112 1,752,346,137
4.6.1 Allowances for Impairment NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Balance as at Shrawan 1 23,075,000 10,050,000
Impairment loss for the year:
Charge for the year 13,025,000
Recoveries/Reversal (10,157,782)
Amount written off
Balance as at Ashad end 12,917,218 23,075,000
4.7 Loans and advances to customers NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Loans and advances measured at amortized 10,060,244,249 6,491,433,089
Less: Impairment allowances
Individual Impairment (347,839,464) (262,013,673)
Portfolio Impairment - -
Net amount 9,712,404,786 6,229,419,416

Loan and advances measured at FVTPL

9,712,404,786

6,229,419,416

Total
4.7.1 Analysis of loan and advances - By product NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Product
Term Loans 2,454,378,820 1,719,655,889
Overdraft 500,401,890 73,641,221
Trust Receipt/Import Loans - -
Demand and other Working Capital Loans 1,296,377,070 416,283,513
Personal Residential Loans 1,862,578,850 1,747,569,425
Real Estate Loans 1,408,081,230 327,635,608
Margin Lending Loans 583,743,600 467,455,520
Hire Purchase Loans 175,005,910 305,834,790
Deprived Sector Loans 574,131,510 255,004,281
Bills Purchased - -
Staffs Loans 162,323,054 78,442,585
Other 925,964,352 953,018,944

Sub-total 9,942,986,287 6,344,541,777

Interest Receivable 117,622,169 146,891,312

Grand Total 10,060,608,456 6,491,433,089

XSS T wrEAT fatwee
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4.7.2 Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency

MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED
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NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Nepalese Rupee

9,942,986,287

6,344,541,777

Indian Rupee

United States Dollar

Great Britain Pound

Euro

Japanese Yen

Chinese Yuan

Other

Grand Total

9,942,986,287

6,344,541,777

4.7.3 Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Secured

Moveable/Immoveable Assets

8,471,213,340

5,511,206,035

Non Governmental Securities 583,743,610 467,455,520
Gold and Silver -
Guarantee of Domestic BFls -
Government Guarantee -
Guarantee of International Rated Bank -
Collateral of Export Document -
Collateral of Fixed Deposit Receipt 211,776,200 74,519,640
Collatereal of Government Securities -

Institutional Guarantee
Counter Guarantee -
Personal Guarantee 508,584,650 281,914,910
Other Collateral 167,668,487 9,445,670

Sub Total 9,942,986,287 6,344,541,775

Unsecured - -

Grand Total 9,942,986,287 6,344,541,775

4.7.4 Allowances for Impairment NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 262,013,673 281,027,695

Impairment loss for the year: 85,825,791 (19,014,022)
Charge for the year 85,825,791 (19,014,022)
Recoveries/reversal during the year - -

Write- offs - -

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency

Other movement

Balance at Ashad end 347,839,464 262,013,673

Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 262,013,673 281,027,695

Impairment loss for the year: 85,825,791 (19,014,022)

Charge/(reversal) for the year 85,825,791 (19,014,022)

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency - -

Other movement - -

Balance at Ashad end 347,839,464 262,013,673

Total allowances for impairment 695,678,927 524,027,346
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4.8 Investment in securities NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Investment securities designated at FVTPL - -
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 1,863,898,940 4,716,337,836
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI - -
Total 1,863,898,940 4,716,337,836
4.8.1 Investment in securities measured at amortized cost NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Debt Securities - -
Government Bond 1,765,979,640 4,716,337,836
Government treasury bills 97,919,300 -
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposit instruments -
Other
Less: Specific allowances for impairment - -
Total 1,863,898,940 4,716,337,836
4.8.2 Investment in equity measured at fair value through other Other comprehensive income NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Equity Instrument
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities -
Total -
4.9 Current tax Assets/Liability NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Current tax assets 41,721,970 242,974,904
Current year Income Tax Assets 41,721,970 242,974,904
Tax Assets of Prior Periods
Current tax liabilities 53,473,434 254,963,812
Current year Income Tax Liabilities 53,473,434 254,963,812

Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods

Total of income tax assets/(liabilities)

(11,751,464)

(11,988,908)

4.10 Investment In subsidiaries

NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
Total Investment
Less: Impairment Allowances
Net Carrying Amount
4.10.1 Investment In quoted subsidiaries NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
.................... Ltd
........ shares of Rs.... Each
.................... Ltd
........ shares of Rs.... Each
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4.10.2 Investment In unquoted subsidiaries
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NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Cost Fair Value Cost

Fair Value

4.10.3 Information relating to subsidiaries of the bank

NPR

Particulars

Percentage of owneship

2078-79

2077-78

4.10.4: Non Controlling Interest of the Subsidiaries

Equity Interest held by NCI (%)
Profit (Loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Ashad End

Dividend Paid to NCI

Group
2078-79

Equity Interest held by NCI (%)
Profit (Loss) allocated during the year
Accumulated Balances of NCI as on Ashad End

Dividend Paid to NCI

4.11 Investment In associates

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Cost Fair Value Cost

Fair Value

Investment in Quoted associates

Investment in Unquoted associates

Total Investment

Less: Impairment Allowances

Net Carrying Amount

4.11.1 Investment In quoted associates

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Cost Fair Value Cost

Fair Value

........ shares of Rs.... Each

........ shares of Rs.... Each
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4.11.2 Investment In unquoted associates

NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Total
4.11.3 Information relating to associates of the bank NPR
. Percentage of owneship
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
4.11.4: Equity value of associates NPR
Group
2078-79 2077-78
4.12 Investment Properties NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Investment Properties measured at Fair Value
Balance as on Shrwawan 01 28,173,061 36,345,733
Addition/(Disposal) during the year (2,267,181) (8,172,672)
Net Changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment/Transfer
Net Amount 25,905,880 28,173,061
Investment Properties measured at Cost
Balance as on Shrawan 01 - -
Addition/(Disposal) during the year
Adjustment/Transfer
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss
Net Amount - -
Total 25,905,880 28,173,061
4.12.1 Detail Of Investment Property NPR
Name & Address of Borrower LRSS As.sumlng UL Total Non Banking Assets
Banking Assets
New Ishwori Books & Stationery Minbhawan -34 , Kathmandu 22/03/2073 25,905,880
Total 25,905,880
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4.14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

NPR
. . Software Total Ashad | Total Ashad
Particulars Goodwill Purchased Developed Other end 2079 end 2078

Cost
Balance as on shrawan 1, 2077 4,370,747 - 4,370,747
Addition during the year 829,067 - 829,067

Acquisition 829,067 - 829,067

Capitalization .
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation -
Balance as on Ashad end 2078 5,199,814 5,199,814 5,199,814
Addition during the year 678,000 678,000

Acquisition -

Capitalization
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation (139,555) (139,555)
Balance as on Ashad end 2079 5,738,259 5,738,259 5,199,814
Amortisation and Impairment
As on Shrawan 01. 2077 3,196,014 3,196,014 2,281,017
Amortisation charge for the year 672,426 672,426 444 463
Impairment for the year
Disposals
Adjustment
Balance as on Ashad end 2078 3,868,440 3,868,440 2,725,480
Amortisation charge for the year 443,563 443,563 470,534
Impairment for the year -
Disposals
Adjustment -
As on Ashad end 2079 4,312,003 4,312,003 5,921,494
Capital Work in Progress
Net Book Value
As on Ashad end 2077 1,174,733 1,174,733 1,194,962
As on Ashad end 2078 1,331,374 1,331,374 1,174,733
As on Ashad end 2079 1,426,257 1,426,257 1,331,374
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4.15 Deferred Taxes Assets/(Liabilities)

MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED
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NPR
2077-78
Particulars De:fsr:ilsTax Dfif:l;:ﬁﬂe?x Net Deferred Tax
Assets /(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to BFls -
Loans and Advances to Customers -
Investment Properties -
Investment Securities -
Investment In Associates - -
Property and Equipment 6,342,541 6,342,541
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 3,076,367 3,076,367
Employees' Leave Liability 1,948,529 1,948,529
Lease Liabilities -
Provisions LLP -
Other Temporary Differences -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 11,367,438 11,367,438
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2077/78 11,367,438
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2077 (6,621,203)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 4,746,235
NPR
2078-79
. Deferred Tax Deferred Tax Net Deferred Tax
Particulars Assets Liabilities | Assets /(Liabili-
ties)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items -
Loans and Advances to BFls -
Loans and Advances to Customers -
Investment Properties -
Investment Securities -
Investment In Associates - -
Property and Equipment (24,153,622) (24,153,622)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 6,487,890 6,487,890
Employees' Leave Liability 2,258,898 2,258,898
Lease Liabilities - -
Provisions LLP - -
Lease Under NFRS 32,177,490 32,177,490
Other Temporary Differences -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 16,770,655 16,770,655
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2078/79 16,770,655
Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liabilities as on Shrawan 01, 2078 11,367,438
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 5,403,218
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in profit or loss 5,403,218
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in Other Comprehensive Income -
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized directly in equity -
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4.16 Other Assets

NPR
Particulars 31-03-2078 31-03-2077
Assets held for Sale -
Other Non-Banking Assets -
Bills Receivable - -
Accounts Receivable 11,271,373 304,749,224
Accrued Income -
Prepayments and Deposits 5,124,977 6,670,927
Income Tax Deposit - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure 52,368,272 99,008,310
Other 3,794,621 1,345,164
Stationery Stock 3,794,621 1,345,164
Commission Receivable - -
Deposit -
Other - -
Grand Total 72,559,243 411,773,625
4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Money Market Deposits
Interbank Borrowing 1,000,000,000 1,400,000,000
Other Deposits from BFls 872,544,345 745,425,549
Settlement and Clearing Accounts - -
Other Deposits from BFls - -
Total 1,872,544,345 2,145,425,549
4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Refinance from NRB 317,298,689 105,972,333
Standing Liquidity Facility 630,000,000 -
Lender of Last Resort facility from NRB -
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - -
Other Payable to NRB 153,688,917 133,986,524
Total 1,100,987,606 239,958,857
4.19 Derivative Financial instruments
NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Held for Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts

Others

Held for Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange Contracts.

Others

Total

LY F= wrEAr fafree

TRt AT JaEET 2095 /30198



4.20 Deposits from customers
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NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Institutions Customers: 1,127,058,478 1,508,596,832
Term deposits 708,200,000 833,953,000
Call deposits 418,858,478 674,643,832
Current deposits -
Other - -
Individual Customers: 9,283,943,924 7,403,172,932
Term deposits 7,449,789,620 5,083,036,314
Saving deposits 1,829,465,554 2,285,176,314
Current deposits - -
Other 4,688,750 34,960,305
Total 10,411,002,401 8,911,769,765

4.20.1 Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Nepalese Rupee

10,411,002,401

8,911,769,765

Indian Rupee

United State dollar

Great Britain pound

Euro

Japenese yen

Chinese Yuan

Other

Total

10,411,002,401

8,911,769,765

4.21 Borrowings

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Institutions

Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions

Multilateral Development Banks

Other institutions

Sub total

Total

Tl AT gidqaad 308 /3060

T g fetrae U Y



MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED
| (ot e =

STt IG FapaTe “1° aIfeB! SASIAU Yrea A

4.22 Provisions

NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Provisions for redundancy
Provision for restructuring
Pending legal issues and tax litigation
Onerous contracts
Other
Total .
4.22.1 Movement in Provisions NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Balance at Sawan 1
Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount
Balance at Ashad end -
4.23 Other Liabilities NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Liabilities for emloyees defined benefit obligations 21,626,299 14,475,503
Liabilities for emloyees defined contribution obligations -
Liabilities for leave 7,529,659 6,495,098
Short term employee benefits 13,034,170 2,434,407
Bills payable - -
Creditors and accruals 13,439,384 6,835,706
Interest payable on deposits 3,196,191 4,523,615
Interest payable on borrowing 24,313,962 19,937,246
Liabilities on defered grant income -
Unpaid Dividend -
Liabilities under Finance Lease 107,258,301
Employee bonus payable 17,490,700 79,357,641
Other Liabilities 15,441,576 11,499,994
Audit Fee Payable 334,500 334,500
TDS Payable 14,921,136 10,952,327
Others 185,939 213,167
Total 223,330,243 145,559,210
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4.23.1. Defined Benefit Obligation

The amounts recognised in the statements of financials positions are as follows :

MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED
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NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Present value of unfunded obligations

21,626,299

10,254,557

Present value of funded obligations

Total present value of obligations

21,626,299

10,254,557

Fair value of plan assets

Present value of net obligations

21,626,299

10,254,557

Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations

21,626,299

10,254,557

4.23.2: Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Equity securities

Government bonds

Bank deposit

Other

Total

4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefi

t obligations

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1

10,254,557

8,245,182

Actuarial losses

Benefits paid by the plan

(6,867,138)

Current service costs; Past Service Cost and interest

18,238,880

2,009,374

Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end

21,626,299

10,254,557

4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1

Contributions paid into the plan

Benefits paid during the year

Actuarial (losses) gains

Expected return on plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end

4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Current service costs

18,238,880

2,009,374

Past service costs-(non Vested)

Past service costs (Vested)

Interest on obligation

Expected return on plan assets

Total

18,238,880

2,009,374
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4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Acturial (gain)/loss
Total - -
4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Discount rate

Expected return on plan asset

Future salary increase

Withdrawal rate

4.23.7 Disclosure Related to Lease Liability

As per NFRS-16, Financial Intitution has recognised the Right to Use Assets and Liability under Finance Lease. Right to
Use Assets and Liability under Finance Lease is defined as Present value of lease rent to be paid over the lease term.
Right to use Assets( ROU Assets) is shown as discounted value of rent payment after deduction of depreciation where
as Libilities under Lease revised over the lease period. As per NFRS-16 "Leases", The recognisition, impact and maturity

are described below:

Particulars ROU Assets Liabilities Under Lease
Recognised at Shrawan 1 118,036,498 118,036,498
Less : Depreciation (14,554,737)
Add : Interest on lease 10,681,398
Less : Lease Payment (21,459,595)
Balance On Ashadh End 103,481,761 107,258,301
Maturity of Lease Liability 2078-79 2077-78
Below 1 Years -
From 1 Year To 5 Years 1,996,500 -
Above 5 Years 105,261,801 -
Balance On Ashadh End 107,258,301 -
4.24 Debt secutities issued NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities issued at amortised cost 500,000,000 500,000,000
Total 500,000,000 500,000,000
4.25 Subordinate Liabilities NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Redeemable preference shares

Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component)

Other

Total
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4.26 Share Capital NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78 2076-77

Ordinary Shares 1,351,552,848 965,394,892 818,131,264
Convertible Preference Shares (Equity component)
Irredemable Preference Shares (Equity component)
Perpetual debt (Equity component only)

Calls in Advance in Ordinary Shares - - -
Total 1,351,552,848 965,394,892 818,131,264
4.26.1 Share capital detail NPR

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78 2076-77

Authorised capital

13,600,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each

1,360,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

Issued Capital

8,181,312.64 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 76/77)
9,653,948.92 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 77/78)
13,515,528.48 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 78/79)

1,351,552,848

965,394,892

818,131,264

Suscribed and paid up capital

8,181,312.64 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 2076/77
9,653,948.92 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 77/78)
13,515,528.48 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each (FY 78/79)

1,351,552,848

965,394,892

818,131,264

Total

1,351,552,848

965,394,892

818,131,264

Note : The Financial Institution has increases the Authorised Capital for FY 2078-79 to NPR.1,360,000,000 (13,600,000
Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each) through approval from 14th Annual General Meeting and subsequently ammended the

Memorandom of Association.

4.26.2 Ordinary Share Ownership

NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78 2076-77
% of holding Amount % of holding Amount % of holding Amount
Domestic ownership 100.00% | 1,351,552,848 100.00% 965,394,892 100.00% 818,131,264
Nepal Government
"A" Class licenced institutions
Other Licenced institutions
Other institutions & individuals 5.62% 75,957,270 5.62% 54,255,193 2.13% 17,426,196
Public 94.38% | 1,275,595,578 94.38% 911,139,699 97.87% 800,705,068
Other
Foreign Ownership
Total 100.00% | 1,351,552,848 100.00% 965,394,892 100.00% 818,131,264
Note: The Financial institution has issued 40% bonus share for FY 2077-78 which increases the capital by

NPR. 386,157,957.
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4.27 Reserves

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

2076-77

Statutory general reserve

263,057,929

241,188,711

122,861,784

Exchange equilisation reserve

Corporate social responsibility reserve

10,720,959

9,666,138

4,693,822

Capital redemption reserve

83,333,333

Regulatory reserve

97,968,762

71,164,023

Investment adjustment reserve

88,732,509

Capital reserve

Assets revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve

94,403,015

Dividend Equalisation Reserve

Debenture redemption reserve

Actuarial gain/(Loss) Reserve

Special reserve

Other reserve

Total

455,080,982

339,587,359

293,122,644

4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Contingent liabilities

300,000

300,000

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Total

300,000

300,000

4.28.1: Contingent Liabilities

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Acceptance and documentary credit

Bills for collection

Forward exchange contracts

Guarantees

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments

300,000

300,000

Total

300,000

300,000

Note: During the course of Business, Financial intitution has provided bank Gurantee of NPR. 300,000.00.

4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Undisbursed amount of loans

Undrawn limits of overdrafts

Undrawn limits of credit cards

Undrawn limits of letter of credit

Undrawn limits of guarantee

Total
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4.28.3: Capital commitments
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Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total

4.28.4: Lease commitments

NPR

Particulars

2078-79

2077-78

Operating lease commitments

"Future  minimum  lease = payments under non  cancellable

operating lease, where the bank is lessee"

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease, where
the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total

4.28.5: Litigation
Contingent Tax Liabilities
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4.29 Interest Income

NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Cash and cash equivalent 14,267,121 10,916,278
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Placement with bank and financial institutions
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 106,744,926 106,744,926
Loans and advances to customers 1,187,586,190 789,522,382
Investment securities 140,749,267 23,104,593
Loan and advances to staff 16,864,827 19,279,097
Other Interest Income
Less: Interest Refund to Customer - -
Total interest income 1,466,212,332 949,567,276
4.30 Interest Expense NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Due to bank and financial institutions 37,058,637 37,058,637
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4,423,577 4,423,577
Deposits from customers 902,468,626 602,060,620
Borrowing 22,032,842 5,193,735
Debt securities issued 47,500,000 19,723,562
Subordinated liabilities
Other Charges - -
Total Interest expense 1,013,483,682 668,460,131
4.31 Fees and commission income NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Loan administration fees - -
Service fees 64,250,715 35,565,623
Consortium fees
Commitment fees
DD/TT/Swift fees -
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees -
Renewal fees
Prepayment and swap fees -
Investment banking fees
Asset management fees
Brokerage fees
Remittance fees -
Commission on letter of credit -
Commission on guarantee contracts issued -
Commission on share underwriting/issue
Locker rental - -
Other fees and commision income 10,900,992 10,021,247
Total Fees and Commission Income 75,151,708 45,586,870
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4.31.1 Other Fees and Commission Income NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Bancassurance-Life Insurance Commission 206,883 258,219
Bancassurance-Non Life Insurance Commission 1,860 3,163
SCT Commission/Income 2,876 2,977
ATM Commission/Income 14,574 28,515
Commission - Bike Loan 522,525 975,925
Commission - Tractor Loan 215,000 90,000
Other Commission 928,666 405,353
Mobile Banking Charge 1,119,821.74 609,900
Prepayment and other income 7,774,190.90 7,589,934
ATM Card income 2,400.00 -
Connect IPS 112,196.04 57,260
Total Other fees and commision income 10,900,992 10,021,247
4.32 Fees and commission Expense NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

ATM management fees -

VISA/Master card fees -

Guarantee commission -

Brokerage -

DD/TT/Swift fees. -

Remittance fees and commission -

Other fees and commission expense -

Total Fees and Commission Expense - -
4.33 Net Trading Income NPR

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Changes in fair value of trading assets -

Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets -

Interest income on trading assets -

Dividend income on trading assets -

Gain/loss foreign exchange transation -

Other -

Net Trading Income - -
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4.34 Other Operating Income

NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Foreign exchange revauation gain -

Gain/loss on sale of investment securities 8,207,015 625,343,472
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties

Dividend on equity instruments - 3,672,139
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment 66,705 (54,453)
Gain/loss on sale of investment property 2,819 3,227,328
Operating lease income -

Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver -

Other Operating Income - -
Total 8,276,539 632,188,486
4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses NPR

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to BFls - 13,025,000

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customers 75,668,008 (19,014,022)

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with BFls

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Impairment charge/(reversal) on Other Assets - -
Total 75,668,008 (5,989,022)
4.36 Personnel Expenses NPR

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Salary 70,423,340 49,019,182
Allowances 23,463,449 16,678,874
Gratuity Expense 18,238,880 4,018,749
Provident Fund 4,848,096 3,865,702
Uniform -

Training & development expense 2,604,537 910,733
Leave encashment 5,294,212 2,963,186
Medical 5,467,808 3,810,125
Insurance -

Employees incentive -

Cash-settled share-based payments -

Pension expense -

Finance expense under NFRS 22,099,810 3,548,424
Other expenses related to staff 14,272,098 10,239,789
Subtotal 166,712,229 95,054,765
Employees bonus 17,490,700 78,797,446
Grand Total 184,202,929 173,852,211

Y wesl wrgAT fafree

TRt AT JaEET 2095 /30198



4.36.1 Finance expense under NFRS

. 'MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED

Tt BrReed ferfics

SuTet e Aepare 1 afeBY SIS Ute ATAT

NPR
Particulars 2078-79
Finance expense of Exit Loan 3,864,252
Finance Expense of Continuous Loan 4,753,318
Finance Expense of New Loan 13,482,240
Total 22,099,810
4.36.2 Other expenses related to staff NPR
Particulars 2078-79
Overtime 177,303.75
Staff Exellance Award 246,340.00
Dashain Allowance 6,377,274.19
Other Staff Cost 1,039,386.00
Refreshment 1,596,353.45
Leave Travel Allowance 4,434,140.99
Travelling & Daily Allowance 401,300.00
Total 14,272,098
4.37 Other Operating Expenses NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Directors' fee 2,058,000 1,912,500
Directors' expense 108,322 98,877
Auditors' remuneration 339,000 339,000
Other audit related expense 4,972 34,425
Professional and legal expense - -
Office administration expense (4.37 A) 69,657,159 50,281,048
Operating Lease expense - 13,555,823
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 38,639
Onerous lease provisions -
Finance Expense under Lease 10,681,398
Other Expenses -
Total 82,887,490 66,221,672
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4.37A Office Administration Expenses NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Water & Electricity 6,148,372 3,463,786
Repair & Maintenance

(a) Building

(b) Vehicle 789,977 486,877

(c) Computer & accessories

(d) Office Equipment & Furniture 259,606 110,848

(e) Others - -
Insurance 3,606,774 1,740,822
Postage, Telex, Telephone, Fax 6,861,443 3,754,145
Printing & Stationery 4,857,758 2,193,242
Newspapers & Books & Journals 40,906 35,030
Advertisements 4,718,637 3,695,589
Donation
Security Expenses 9,992,891 8,087,071
Deposit & Loan Guarantee Premium - 1,489,742
Travel Allowance & Expenses 813,165 545,951
Entertainment 669,388 11,000
Annual/Special General Meeting Expenses 86,247 270,418
Other

Fuel Expenses 2,668,928 1,421,493

Debenture Issue Expenses 2,850,981

Share Issue Expenses - -

Annual Fee 1,748,421 2,687,121

Office Expenses 25,807,807 16,534,038

Technical Service Fees 197,750 565,000

Miscelleneous Expenses 389,089 337,894
Total 69,657,159 50,281,048
4.37B Operating Lease Expenses NPR

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Depreciation on property and equipment 35,538,602 17,807,800
Depreciation on investment property -

Amortisation of intangible assets 443,563 672,426
Total 35,982,164 18,480,226
4.38 Depreciation and Amortisation NPR

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Depreciation on property and equipment 35,538,602 17,807,800
Depreciation on investment property -
Amortisation of intangible assets 443,563 672,426
Total 35,982,164 18,480,226
4.39 Non Operating Income
NPR
Particulars 2077-78 2076-77

Recovery of Loan written off

Other Income

Total
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4.40 Non Operating expense NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Loan written off -
Redundancy provision -
Expense of restructuring
Other expense.
Total -
4.41 Income Tax Expenses
NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Current Tax Expenses 53,473,434 215,649,466
Current Year 53,473,434 215,649,466
Adjustment for Prior Years - -
Deferred tax Expenses (5,403,218) (4,746,235)
Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences (5,403,218) (4,746,235)
Change in tax Rate
Recognition of Previously unrecognized Tax Losses - -
Total Income tax expense 48,070,217 210,903,231
4.41.1: Reconciliation of Tax Expenses and Accounting Profit NPR
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Profit Before Tax 157,416,304 706,317,413
Tax Amount at the Rate of 30% 47,224,891 211,895,224
Add: Tax Effect of the expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 6,248,543 3,202,711
Less: Tax Effect on Exempt Income
Add/Less: Tax Effect on other ltems - -
Total Income Tax Expenses 53,473,434 215,097,935
Effective Tax Rate 33.97% 30.45%
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Manjushree Finance Limited

Disclosures & Additional Information
Ashad End 2079

5.1 Risk Management

In compliance with Nepal Rastra Bank Directive on 6 “Corporate Governance", the Board of Finance Company has
established a Risk Management Committee with clear terms of reference. As at the date of this report, the Finance
Company's Risk Management Committee comprised of the following:

S.N. Members of Risk Management Committee Designation
1 Mr. Chinta Mani Gautam Coordinator
3 Mr. Dilman Singh Chanda Member
4 Mrs. Sharmila Kayasta Member
5 Mrs. Sangita Dangol Member-Secretary

The Committee meets eleven times during the fiscal year. The committee oversees and reviews the fundamental
prudential risks including operational, credit, market, reputational, capital and liquidity risk etc.

The responsibilities of Risk Management Committee are as follows:

a. Formulate policies and guidelines for identification, measurement, monitoring and control all major risk categories.
b. Ensuring the Finance Company has clear, comprehensive and well documented policies and procedure.

c. Defining the Finance Company's overall risk tolerance in relation to credit risk.
d

Ensuring that Finance Company's significant risks exposure is maintained at prudent levels and consistent with
the available capital.

Apart from Board Level Risk Management Committee the other committees and groups as mentioned below supports
for Overall Risk Management.

i)

Risk Governance

Risk management committee of the Finance Company has formed to review the credit risk, market risk and
liquidity risk of the Finance. Apart from this the Finance Company has formed the Assets Liability Committee
(ALCO) to monitor Liquidity risk as well as market risk and Anti-Money Laundering Prevention committee
(AML) in order to monitor the operational risk. The committee and subcommittee has effectively discharged
their duties & responsibility.

Risk management committee analyse the Stress testing of the Finance Company as required by Nepal
Rastra Bank and its impact and corrective action to mitigate the risk.

Through its risk management framework, the Finance Company seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and
liquidity risks which arise directly through the Finance Company's commercial activities as well as operational,
regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking. As part
of this framework, the Finance Company uses a set of principles that describe its risk management culture.
The Finance has developed Risk Management Policy to manage Credit risk, Market risk and liquidity risk.

The major risk areas and mitigation mechanism is as given below;

1) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential for loss due to failure of counterparty to meet its obligations to pay the
Finance Company in accordance with agreed terms.

A standardized loan application forms has been in use for facilitating collection and analysis of all
the relevant data for evaluating credit worthiness and proper evaluation of the credit risk of the
prospective borrower. The factors considered in evaluating loan applications normally included
prospects of the business, management of the firm/company, financial analysis- income statement,
balance sheet, cash flow statement, key financial indicators, key risk and mitigates. Further,
inspection and supervision are also conducted before approval of the loan for pre-analysis and after
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the disbursement of loan as well for monitoring the utilization of loan.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the prospect of loss of resulting from inadequate or failed procedures, systems
or policies, employee errors, system failures, fraud or other criminal activity, any event that disrupts
business processes.

For the control of operational risk of institution, it has Financial Administration Policy, Employee
Bylaws, Operational manual, AML, KYC & CFT policy, and Guidelines for AML, KYC & CFT,
Suspicious Transaction identification Procedure, Politically exposed person identification procedure,
which guides the day to day operation.

Each risk control owner is responsible for identifying risks that are material and for maintaining an
effective control environment across the organization. Risk control owners have responsibility for the
control of operational risk arising from the management of the following activities: External Rules &
Regulations, Liability, Legal Enforceability, Damage or Loss of Physical Assets, Safety & Security,
Internal Fraud or Dishonesty, External Fraud, Information Security, Processing Failure, and Model.
Operational risks can arise from all business lines and from all activities carried out by the Finance
Company.

Market Risk

Risks arising out of adverse movements in interest rates and equity prices are covered under Market
Risk Management. Market Risk is the potential for loss of earnings or economic value due to adverse
changes in financial market rates or prices. Institution exposure to market risk arises principally from
customer driven transactions.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that the Finance Company either does not have sufficient liquid financial

resources available to meet all its obligations as they fall due, or can only access these financial
resources at excessive cost.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is a risk of loss resulting from damages to reputation of institution, in lost revenue;
increased operating, capital or regulatory costs; or destruction of shareholder value.

Reputational risk is managed by the management committee which are responsible for protecting
the institution's reputation locally and has the responsibility to ensure that the Finance Company
does not undertake any activities that may cause material damage to the reputation of institution.

Employee Benefit Risk

Employee benefit risk is the potential risk of loss due to having to meet shortfall in the Finance
Company's defined benefits gratuity and leave encashment schemes.

The gross obligation for gratuity is calculated considering the salary at the time of retirement of the
individual staff and number of years' service with the finance. The home leave can be accumulated
for maximum period of 60 days for total period served by individual staff. The gross obligation for
leave encashment is calculated considering the last drawn salary multiplied by no of eligible days
for leave encashment.

Internal Control

The Board is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial activities in a
manner which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which
can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
and enhance resilience to external events. To achieve this, the Board has adopted policies and
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procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/monitoring.

The effectiveness of the Company's internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its
Committees, Management and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Finance Company's system of internal control during the year and provided feedback to
the Board as appropriate. The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards and the
effectiveness of internal control structures across the Company through its program of business/
unit audits. Internal Audit reports are quarterly forwarded to the Audit Committee. The findings of
all audits are reported to the Chief Executive Officer and Business Heads for initiating immediate
corrective measures.

8) Any Other Risk

Compliance Risk

Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, material financial loss, or loss to reputation
due to failure to comply with laws, rules and standards.

MFL is committed to follow best practices and market standards in the areas of accountability,
transparency and business ethics. The Finance Company aims at a zero tolerance of misconduct
and corruption.

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is the risk in achieving Finance Company's strategic objectives, both from internal and
external events and scenarios which prevent from achieving strategic objectives.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions, which are subject to interest
rate adjustment within a specified period.

AML/CFT Risk

AML/CFT risk is related with providing financial services to money launders and terrorists for
channelling of money derived from crime or aimed at funding terrorism.

The strictness of the provisions made in laws and directives reflect the seriousness of this issue;
non-compliance of which may cause significant reputational risk as well as may result in adverse
consequences

A separate AML, KYC & CFT Unit is established which looks after the effective implementation and
compliance of AML, KYC & CFT related prevailing Acts, Rules and Directives.
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5.2 Capital Management
5.2.1. Qualitative disclosures

The Finance Company has maintained the capital adequacy as per Capital adequacy framework, 2007 (Updated
July 2008) as required by Nepal Rastra Bank. The main objective of this framework is to develop a safe and
sound financial system by way of sufficient amount of qualitative capital and risk management practices. The total
equity of the Finance Company comprises of paid up capital, statutory reserves and other reserves. The Finance
Company have subordinated term debt. Core Capital fund and Total Capital Fund as per Basel Il is 13.29% and
18.06% as on Asadh End 2079.

Assessment of capital adequacy of Finance Company is done on regular basis taking into considerations the
exposure of bank. Also, the analysis of possible impact on capital adequacy is being done on regular basis taking
into consideration the future impacts on assumptive basis. Capital adequacy of Finance Company and impact in
capital due to future change in nature and size of business is discussed in Risk Management Committee and is
summarized in board. Regular monitoring of nature of business is being done so that unexpected negative impact
could not take place in capital adequacy of Finance Company. Reporting to regulatory body is being done as
prescribed by compliance department.

The internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) is a comprehensive process which requires board and
senior management oversight, monitoring, reporting and internal control reviews at regular intervals to ensure the
alignment of regulatory capital requirement with the true risk profile of the Finance Company and thus ensure long-
term safety and soundness of the Finance Company. The key components of an effective ICAAP are discussed
below.

a. Board and senior management oversight

Board and senior management oversight management is responsible for understanding the nature and
level of risk being taken by the Finance Company and how this risk relates to adequate capital levels. It
is also responsible for ensuring that the formality and sophistication of the risk management processes
is commensurate with the complexity of its operations. A sound risk management process, thus, is the
foundation for an effective assessment of the adequacy of a Finance Company's capital position.

The board of directors of the Finance Company is responsible for setting the Finance Company's tolerance
for risks. The board also ensures that management establishes a mechanism for assessing various risks;
develops a system to relate these risks to the Finance Company's capital level and sets up a method for
monitoring compliance with internal policies. It is equally important that the board instills strong internal
controls and thereby an effective control environment through adoption of written policies and procedures
and ensures that the policies and procedures are effectively communicated throughout the Finance
Company.

b. Sound Capital Assessment

Another crucial component of an effective ICAAP is the assessment of capital. In order to be able to make
a sound capital assessment the Finance Company should, at minimum, have the following:

> Policies and procedures designed to ensure that the Finance Company identifies, measures, and
reports all material risks;

> A process that relates capital to the level of risk;

> A process that states capital adequacy goals with respect to risk, taking account of the Finance
Company's strategic focus and business plan; and

> A process of internal control, reviews and audit to ensure the integrity of the overall management
process.

c. Comprehensive assessment of risk

All material risks faced by the Finance Company should be addressed in the capital assessment process.
Nepal Rastra Bank recognizes that not all risks can be measured precisely. However, Finance Company
should develop a process to estimate risks with reasonable certainties. In order to make a comprehensive
assessment of risks, the process should, at minimum, address the following forms of risk.
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1. Credit Risk
2. Credit Concentration Risk
3. Operational Risk
4. Market Risk
5. Liquidity Risk
d. Monitoring and reporting

The Finance Company has established an adequate system for monitoring and reporting risk exposures
and assessing how the Finance Company's changing risk profile affects the need for capital. The Finance
Company's senior management or board of directors, on a regular basis, receives reports on the Finance
Company's risk profile and capital needs. These reports allow senior management to:

> Evaluate the level and trend of material risks and their effect on capital levels;

> Evaluate the sensitivity and reasonableness of key assumptions used in the capital assessment
measurement system;

> Determine that the Finance Company holds sufficient capital against the various risks and is in
compliance with established capital adequacy goals; and

> Assess its future capital requirements based on the Finance Company's reported risk profile and
make necessary adjustments to the Finance Company's strategic plan accordingly.

e. Internal Control Review

The Finance Company's internal control structure is essential to a sound capital assessment process.
Effective control of the capital assessment process includes an independent review and, where appropriate,
the involvement of internal or external audits. The Finance Company's board of directors has a responsibility
to ensure that management establishes a system for assessing the various risks, develops a system to
relate risk to the Finance Company's capital level, and establishes a method for monitoring compliance
with internal policies. The board should regularly verify whether its system of internal controls is adequate
to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business. The bank should conduct periodic reviews of its
risk management process to ensure its integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. Key areas that should be
reviewed include:

> Appropriateness of the Finance Company's capital assessment process given the nature, scope and
complexity of its activities;

Identification of large exposures and risk concentrations;
Accuracy and completeness of data inputs into the Finance Company's assessment process;

Reasonableness and validity of scenarios used in the assessment process; and

Y V VY V

Stress testing and analysis of assumptions and inputs.
5.2.2 Quantitative Disclosures
1. Capital Structure & Capital Adequacy

Tier | Capital & Breakdown of Its Components

Particulars Amount (Rs)
Paid up Equity Share Capital 1,351,552,848
Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares -

Share Premium -

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares -
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Particulars Amount (Rs)
Statutory General Reserves 263,057,929
Retained Earnings 1,519,368
Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss) -
Capital Redemption Reserve 83,333,333

Capital Adjustment Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Other Free Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized

Less: Other Deductions

Total Tier | Capital

1,699,463,479

Tier Il Capital & Breakdown of Its Components

Particulars

Amount (Rs)

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt 416,666,667
Hybrid Capital Instruments -
General loan loss provision (limited to 1.65% of total RWE) 192,406,847
Exchange Equalization Reserve -
Investment Adjustment Reserve -
Asset Revaluation Reserve -
Other Reserves -
Total Tier Il Capital 609,073,514
Total Qualifying Capital
Particulars Amount
Core Capital (Tier I) 1,699,463,479
Supplementary Capital (Tier Il) 609,073,514

Total Capital Fund

2,308,536,993

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Tier | and Total Capital Fund of the Finance Company as per Base Il as on Ashad 2079 is 13.29% and

18.06% of Risk Weighted Exposures.
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2. Risk Exposure

* Risk Weighted Exposure For Credit Risk, Market Risk & Operational Risk

Risk Weighted Exposures Current Period
Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 11,392,595,319
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 927,915,280
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 0
Total Risk Weighted Exposures 12,320,510,599

Adjustments under Pillar Il

ALM policies & practices are not satisfactory, add 1% of net interest income to RWE

Add .....% of the total deposit due to insufficient Liquid Assets

Add RWE equvalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 2% of gross income 217,876,300
If overall risk management policies and precedures are not satisfactory. Add 2% of RWE 246,410,212
If desired level of disclosure requirement has not been achieved, Add .....% of RWE

Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustments of Pillar II) 12,784,797,111

5.2.3 Compliance With External Requirement
The Finance Company, at all times, has complied the externally imposed capital requirement.

Rt AT giqaed 209 /3097, o1 wredT=a fatreg 99



MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED

.Inl'wﬂ PR feifies

aiuTet g Jaare ‘O afd! ST Uit Azl

5.3 Classification of Financial assets & financial liabilities

NPR
AR e Fair value through
Financial Assets Amortized Cost | other comprehensive . 9 Total
) profit or loss
income
Cash in hand 252,741,803 252,741,803

Balances with B/Fls

2,490,941,130

Money at call and short notice

2,490,941,130

Interbank placement

Balance at NRB

317,679,428

317,679,428

Derivative financial instrument

Loans & Advances

11,054,240,579

11,054,240,579

Government bonds

1,765,979,640

1,765,979,640

Government treasury bills 97,919,300 97,919,300
Equity investments -
Other assets 16,396,350 16,396,350
Total Financial Assets 15,995,898,231 15,995,898,231
NPR
Financial Liabilities Amortized Cost | r value through profit or loss (FVTPL) Total

Held for trading

Designated at FVTPL

Deposits from customers

10,411,002,401

10,411,002,401

Due to Banks & Financial Institutions

1,872,544,345

1,872,544,345

Due to Nepal Rastra Banks

1,100,987,606

1,100,987,606

Debt Securities 500,000,000 500,000,000
Employee related liabilities 59,680,829 59,680,829
Bills payable - -
Creditors and accruals 13,439,384 13,439,384
Interest payable on deposit 3,196,191 3,196,191
Interest payable on borrowing 24,313,962 24,313,962
Unpaid Dividend - -
Liabilities under Finance Lease - -
Other liabilities 15,441,576 15,441,576
Total Financial Liabilities 14,000,606,295 - 14,000,606,295

9% w=sf e fafee

TRt AT JaEET 2095 /30198



Tl AT gidqaad 308 /3060

1. General information

a) Factors that management used to identify the entitys reportable segments

5.4 Operating Segment Information

- Based on geographical segment

MANJUSHREE FINANCE LIMITED
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SuTet e Aepare 1 afeBY SIS Ute ATAT

b) Description of the types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues

- Loan & Advances to customer and other anciliary services

2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

NPR
Particulars Provinceno1 | Province no 2 Bagmati Lumbini Sudur Paschim Ganadaki Total

a | Revenues from external customers 309,591,631.50 62,052,305.24 733,258,239.16 278,358,658.76 105,788,910.56 52,314,294.08 | 1,541,364,039.30
b | Intersegment revenues
¢ | Net Revenue 309,591,631.50 62,052,305.24 733,258,239.16 278,358,658.76 105,788,910.56 52,314,294.08 | 1,541,364,039.30
d | Interest revenue 294,496,988.56 59,026,844.29 697,507,042.51 264,786,830.15 100,631,000.37 49,763,625.69 |  1,466,212,331.56
e | Interest expense 93,158,844.79 38,413,245.81 704,986,573.52 124,472,263.66 27,498,148.27 24,954,606.08 | 1,013483,682.13
f | Netinterest revenue 201,338,143.77 20,613,598.48 (7479,531.02) 140,314,566.49 73,132,852.10 24,809,019.61 452,728,649.43
g | Depreciation and amortisation 7,221219.94 1,448,571.64 1TT 44772 6,498,106.03 2469,574.90 1221,243.96 35,982,164.20
h | Segment profit /(loss) 194,110,923.83 19,165,026.84 (24,596,978.74) 133,816,460.45 70,663,277.19 23,587,775.65 416,746 485.24
i | Entityls interest in the profit or loss of associates

accounted for using equity method
j | Other material non-cash items:

Provision for loan loss
k | Impairment of assets
|| Segment assets 3,195,813,507.40 640,545722.38 |  7569,185813.53 |  2,873,405,70948 | 1,092,024 444.17 540,023,407.13 | 15,910,998,604.09
m | Segment liabilities 1,297,867,093.74 535,164,207.14 |  9,821,706971.10 |  1,734,118,273.41 383,097,728.02 347,661,696.94 | 14,119,616,060.35

3. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(a) Revenue NPR

Total revenues for reportable segment

1,541,364,039

Other revenues

Elimination of intersegment revenues

Entity's revenues 1,541,364,039
(b) Profit or loss
NPR
Total profit or loss for reportable segments 416,746,485
Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Unallocated amounts:
Profit before income tax 416,746,485
(c) Assets
NPR
Total assets for reportable segments 15,910,998,604
Other assets -
Unallocated amounts
Entity's assets 15,910,998,604
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(d) Liabilities NPR
Total liabilities for reportable segments 14,119,616,060
Other liabilities -
Unallocated liabilities
Entity's liabilities 14,119,616,060
4. Information about products and services
Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1(b) above
5. Information about geographical areas
NPR

Revenue from following geographical areas

(a) | Domestic 1,541,364,039
Province 1 309,591,631
Madesh 62,052,305
Bagmati 733,258,239
Lumbini 278,358,659
Sudurpaschim 105,788,911
Gandaki 52,314,294

(b) | Foreign -
Total 1,541,364,039

6. Information about major customers

Revenue from a single external customer doesnot exceed 10 percent or more of the entitys revenue.

5.5 Share options and share based payment

The financial institution does not have any share option and share based payment.

5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment
Pending Legal Cases

At the end of Ashad, 2079, 2 cases for recovery of loan are pending for decision at Debt Reveneue Tribunal.
Likewise, the financial institution has filed administrative revew against the tax assessment done by Inland
Revenue Office under Section 101 for F.Y. 2073/74 & 2074-75 which is yet to be decided.

Contingent Liabilities

Where the financial institution undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees
issued for which an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in
these financial statements as contingent liabilities.

Commitments

Where the financial institution has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a
customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not and the Bank has
not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial statement as
commitments.

Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are given in note 4.28.
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Following has been identified as Related Parties for the financial institution under NAS 24 Related Parties:

a. Directors

b. Key Management Personnel of the Bank

c. Relatives of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

FY 2078-79

FY 2077-78

Directors

Directors

Indira Pandit Ghimire

Indira Pandit Ghimire

Yadav Adhikari

Yadav Adhikari

Ramhari Sharma

Ramhari Sharma

Suman Prasad Adhikari

Rabin Raj Devkota

Chintamani Gautam

Chintamani Gautam

Dil Man Singh Chand

Dil Man Singh Chand

Arun Neupane

Arun Neupane

FY 2078-79

FY 2077-78

Directors

Directors

Key Managerial Personnel

Key Managerial Personnel

Narayan Subedi

Santosh Niraula

NPR
Narayan Subedi
Transaction during the Year
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Directors
Directors Sitting Fees 2,058,000.00 1,912,500.00
Interest Paid to directors on deposits 4,060,020.50 286,260.69
Other directors' expenses (if any) 108,322.00 98,876.83
Total 6,226,342.50 2,297,637.52
Key Management Personnel
Remuneration and Benefit Paid 16,423,852.00 15,893,390.00
Post-Retirement Benefits
Other Long-term Benefits
Borrowing during the year
Interest on Borrowing
Interest on account balances 780,991.42 74,255.50
Other transactions benefits if any NPR
Total 17,204,843.42 15,967,645.50

Wv_d'[%ﬁ q%éﬂ = fafgee 0%
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Reporting Date Balances

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Directors Deposits 40,300,917.96 685,016.41
KMP Deposits 10,664,358.99 1,651,311.67
Borrowings
Other Receivable payables if any
Total 50,965,276.95 2,336,328.08

5.8 Merger and acquisition
The financial institution has not undertaken any mergers and acquisition during the year.

5.9 Additional disclosures of non consolidated entities
Not Applicable

5.10 Events after reporting date.

The financial institution monitors and assess events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and
/ or non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the books
with additional disclosures and non-adjusting material events are discloses in the notes with possible financial
impact, to the extent ascertainable.There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 32 Ashad
2079 till the signing of this financial statement.

Other Disclosures

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund

NRB Directive 6 requires BFls to create Corporate Social Responsibility Fund and appropriate an amount equivalent
to 1% of net profit annually into this fund for covering expenditure related to CSR activities in the subsequent year.
Accordingly, the institution had opening reserve of NPR 9,666,137. This year, the institution has also appropriated 1% of
net profit i.e. NPR 1,093,461 and utilised NPR 38,639 in CSR activities and therefore total fund in this amount is NPR

10,720,959 and shown as Other Reserve in Statement of Changes in Equity

NPR
Particulars As at Ashadh 31, 2079 As at Ashadh 31, 2078
Opening CSR Fund 9,666,137 4,693,821
Add : 1% of profit this year 1,054,822 4,972,316
Less : CSR Expenses (38,639)
Closing CSR Fund 10,682,320 9,666,137

Employee's Training Fund

No amount has been transferred to employee's training fund, as Nepal Rastra Bank has given relaxation for the year for

transfer of amount to employee's training fund.

NPR

Particulars

As at Ashadh 31, 2079

As at Ashadh 31, 2078

Opening Training Fund

Add : 3% of Last year staff expenses

Actual Staff Training Expenses

Closing Training Fund

Non Performing Assets

The Finance's non performing assets stood at 2.11% as at balance sheet date The total non performing assets as at
Balance sheet date is NPR 226,889,797and loan loss provision calculated as per NRB Directives is NPR .360,756,681.
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Particulars This Year Previous Year NP
Performing loan 10,547,405,565 7,879,248,286
Good 9,458,047,228 6,717,403,096
Watch List 1,089,358,336 1,161,845,190
Non-Performing Loan(NPL) 226,889,797 161,850,905
Sub Standard 70,817,559 18,663,821
Doubtful 9,517,161 16,365,733
Bad 146,555,078 126,821,351
Gross Loans and Advances 10,774,295,362 8,041,099,192
Loan Loss Provision calculated as per NRB Directives .
Particulars This Year Previous Year
Performing loan 191,738,634 145,418,500
Good 122,954,614 87,326,240
Watch List 68,784,020 58,092 RER
Non-Performing Loan(NPL) 169,018,048 139,670,173
Sub Standard 17,704,390 4,665,955
Doubtful 4,758,580 8,182,867
Bad 146,555,078 126,821,351
Total Loan Loss Provision 360,756,681 285,088,673

Non Banking Assets

Non-Banking Assets are the assets obtained as security for loans & advances and subsequently taken over by\{bg
fiancne in the course of loan recovery.Such assets are booked at fair market value or total amount due from the borrower,
whichever is lower.

Name & Address of Borrower PEEE] As_summg ol Total Non Banking Assets

Banking Assets NP
New Ishwori Books & Stationery Minbhawan -34 , Kathmandu 3/22/73 25,905,880
Total 25,905,380

During the financial year, the financial institution has disposed off following non-banking assets.

Name of Customer NBA Received Amount
Mr. Mukunda Prasad Parajuli 2,267,181 2,270,000
Total 2,267,181 2,270,000
Gain/Loss on sale of NBA
Name of Customer Gain/(Loss)
Mr. Mukunda Prasad Parajuli 2,819
Total Gain 2,819

Adjustment for AIR & Interest Recovered till Shrawan 15, 2078

The financial institution has recognized Rs.117,622,163 out of AIR of loan other than classified as bad loan and as a
result of which Rs. 2,969,0285 has been deducted from interst income( i.e. the difference between closing AIR of current
year and previous year).

Rs. 5,403,218 has been transferred to regulatory reserve after deducting the interest recovered till shrawan 15, 2079
amounting to Rs.14,642,160.

Additional Disclosures: Forbearance/relaxation
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Table No. 1

Particulars

As of Asadh end 2079

No. of Customers

Amount (NRs.)

Accrued Interest Received after Asadh end 2079 till 15 Shrawan 2079

7,432

14,642,160

Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created on Pass Loan Portfolio.

NA

28,374,142

Extension of moratorium period of loan provided to Industry or Project under construction.

Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss Provision

Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% to COVID affected borrowers

5,400,000.00

Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID affected borrowers

498,680.45

Expiry date of Additional 20% Working Capital Loan (COVID Loan) extended for up to 1 year
with 5% provisioning

NPR

Expiry Date of Additional 10% Term Loan (COVID Loan) extended for up to 1 Year with 5%
provisioning

Time Extension provided for repayment of Principal and Interest for up to two years as per
clause 41 of NRB Directives 2

Refinance Loan and Business Continuity
Table No. 2

NPR

Particulars No. of Customers

Amount (NRs.)

Refinance Loan

204

317,298,689

Business Continuity Loan

Subsidized Loan
Table No. 3

During FY 2078/79

Particulars

No. of Customers

Amount (NRs.)

Subsidized Loan

5

1,909,671
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NPR
As per . As per Audited
Particulars Notes Unaudi?ed 32 ;\25 ::;;ﬁjug(l)t;: In Am:un t % Reasons for Variance
Ashad 2079 o

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 41 | 2841602233 2743682933 97919,300|  3.45| easury billis shown asinvestment instead
of Cash and equivalent

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 42 317,679,428 317,679,428 - 0.00

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions | 4.3 - -

Derivative financial instruments 4.4 - - -

Other trading assets 4.5 - - -

Loan and Advances to B/FIs 4.6 980,714,905 981,079,112 (364,207)|  -0.04 | Adjustment of AIR and reclassification of loan

Loans and advances to customers 47 9,641,926,747 9,712,404,786| (70,478,039) -0.73 | Adjustment of AIR and reclassification of loan
Change in calculation of fair value due to

Investment in securities 4.8 1,750,000,000 1,863,898,940| (113,898,940) -6.51 |interest accured & treasury bill is shown as
investment instead of Cash and equivalent

Current Tax Assets 4.9 - - -

Investment in subsidiaries 410 - - -

Investment in Associates 411 - - -

Investment property 412 25,905,880 25,905,880 - 0.00

Property and equipment 413 88,831,788 192,362,025 (103,530,237)| -116.55 g:fﬂ%;gjgprec'am” and ROU asset as

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4,14 1,869,820 1,426,257 443,563| 23.72|Change in depreciation amount

Deferred tax assets 415 11,367,438 16,770,655 (5,403,218)| -47.53 | Change in calulation of deferred tax assets

Other assets 4.16 152,176,772 72,559,243 79,617,529 | 52.32 | Regrouping of other assets

Total Assets 15,812,075,011 15,927,769,260 | (115,694,248)

Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 1,872,544,345 1,872,544,345 - 0.00

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 1,100,987,606 1,100,987,606 - 0.00

Derivative Financial instruments 4.19 - - -

Deposit from customers 4.20 10,411,002,401 10,411,002,401 - 0.00 | round off difference

Borrowings 4.21 - - -

Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 4,750,874 11,751,464 (7,000,591) Change in taxable income

Provisions 4.22 - - -

Deferred tax liabilities 415 - - -

Other liabilities 423 115,584,678 223,330,243| (107,745,565)| -93.22 |\t off incometax payble, bonus payable.re-
grouping of other liabilities

Debt securities issued 4.24 500,000,000 500,000,000 -

Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - - -

Total liabilities 14,004,869,904 14,119,616,060 | (114,746,156)

Equity

Share Capital 4.26 1,351,552,848 1,351,552,848 - 0.00

Share Premium - - -

Retained Eaming 90,516,899 1519368  88,997,531| 98.32 |DUe o change in net profit & transfer to
regulatory adjustment

Reserves 427 365,135,361 455,080,982| (89,945,621)| (24.63) g”e to change in net profit and transfer o

eneral reserve and CSR reserve

Total equity attributable to equity holders 1,807,205,108 1,808,153,198 (948,091) -0.05

Non-controlling interests - - - -

Total equity 1,807,205,108 1,808,153,198 (948,091)

Total liabilities and equity 15,812,075,011 15,927,769,260 | (115,694,248) -

Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 - - -

Net assets value per share

Net assets value per share
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Manjushree Finance Limited

Comparision of Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 32 Ashad 2079

NPR
Notes hs p:;;]arﬁ:dited hs gg;l:l;gited = Am(\)l::tance m Reasons for Variance
Interest Income 429 | 1442496513 1466212332  (23.715818)| (1.64) loDa‘:]eatn‘; ZT:;gfng‘ mi:;zf:t accured in bad
Interest Expense 430 | (1,013,613,820)| (1,013,483,682) (130,138) 0| Due to one day interest on debenture
Net interest income 428,882,693 452,728,649 (23,845,957) | (5.56)
Fees and Commission Income 4.31 75,154,526 75,151,708 2,819 0
Fees and Commission Expense 4.32
Net fee and Commission income 75,154,526 75,154,526
Net interest fee and commission income 504,037,219 527,883,176 (23,845,957) (5)
Net Trading Income 4.33
Other Operating Income 434 8,273,720 8,276,539 (2,819) sgl:eoft‘f’e::;;‘?:sti:'u;Zi‘t’:.“ﬁ”g for gain on
Total operating income 512,310,939 536,159,715 (23,848,775) (5)
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.35 81,256,488 75,668,008 5,588,479 6.88 | Write back of provision
Net Operating income 431,054,452 460,491,706 (29,437,255) U]
Operating expenses
Personal Expense 4.36 161,824,583 184,202,929 (22,378,346) (14) | Due to change in staff bonus & amortisation
Other Operating Expenses 437 03288048|  82887490|  10400558| 11 ai’s:&:l”;?ﬁ:y"rzz:fe as per NFRS 16
Depreciation and amortisation 438 21,032,341 35,982,164 | (14949,823) | (71.08) g::’:f;‘;g‘ %epredaﬂ"“ and ROU asset as
Operating Profit 154,909,479 157,419,122 (2,509,643) (2) | Due to change in above adjustment
Non operating income 4.39
Non operating expense 440
Profit before share of results of Associates & Joint Ventures 154,909,479 157,419,122 (2,509,643) | (1.62) | Due to change in above adjustment
Share of Results of Associates & Joint Venture
Profit before income tax 154,909,479 157,419,122 (2,509,643) | (1.62)
Income tax expense 441 46,472,844 48,070,217 (1,597,373) |  (3.44) | Due to change in above adjustment
Current tax 46,472,844 53,473,434 (7,000,591) | (15.06)
Deferred tax income (5,403,218) 5,403,218
Profit for the period 108,436,635 109,348,906 (912,270) |  (0.84) | Due to change in above adjustment
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the bank 108,436,635 109,348,906 (912,270) | (0.84)
Non-controlling interest
Profit for the period 108,436,635 109,348,906 (912,270 |  (0.84)
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share 58.85 36.79
Diluted earnings per Share

S¥ HeAT wrEATH fates
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Manjushree Finance Limited

Comparative Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 32 Ashad 2079
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NPR

Notes

As per
Unaudited
2078-79

As per
Audited
2078-79

Variance

In Amount

%

Reasons for Variance

Profit for the period

108,436,635

109,346,087

(909,452)

(0.84)

Due to Change in Net Profit

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

+ Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments
measured at fair value

0.00

+ Gains/(losses) on revaluation

* Acturial gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans

* Income tax relating to above items

Net other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

+ Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

+ Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating
financial assets of foreign operation)

* Income tax relating to above items

* Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that are or may be
reclassified to profit or loss

¢) Share of other comprehensive income of associate
accounted as per equity method

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of
Income Tax

Total comprehensive income for the period

108,436,635

(909,452)

(0.84)

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

109,346,087

Equity holders of the Bank

108,436,635

109,346,087

(909,452)

(0.84)

Non-controlling interest

Total Comprehensive income for the period

108,436,635

109,346,087

(909,452)

(0.84;
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